# Safeguarding policy statement September 2021

#### Contents

Introduction	7
Covid – 19	7
Legal framework	7
Definition of Safeguarding	8
Principles	8
Aims	8
Roles and responsibilities	9
Good practice guidelines	9
Monitoring Children's Attendance	10
Intimate/Personal Care	11
Safer Caring	11
E-Safety, Staff and Parents/Carers	12
Mobile Technologies	12
Use of Digital Images and Video	13
Recording Suspicions of Abuse and Disclosures	13
Guidelines for Designated Safeguarding Leads	14
Informing Parents	14
Early Help	15
Pupils with SEND	15
Allegations against adults working or volunteering with children	16
Safeguarding Partners	16
Confidentiality	16
Information Sharing	17
Staff Training	17
Record keeping	17
Safer Recruitment	
Pre – employment checks	
Volunteers	19
Recognising Child Abuse	19
Child Criminal Exploitation (CCE)	21
Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE)	21
Children missing from education	22
Female Genital Mutilation (FGM)	22
Fabricated or Induced Illness (FII)	23
Domestic Abuse	23

Preventing Radicalisation	24
Upskirting	24
Children with family members in prison	24
Mental Health	25
Peer on peer abuse	25
Contextual Safeguarding	26
Monitoring and Review	26
Appendices	. Error! Bookmark not defined.

#### Summary

#### The purpose and scope of this policy statement :

The aim of Alfalah Project is to serve the community by providing language classes at different levels.

#### The purpose of this policy statement is:

• To protect children and young people who receive Alfalah Project's services from harm. This includes the children of adults who use our services

• To provide staff and volunteers, as well as children and young people and their families, with the overarching principles that guide our approach to child protection. This policy applies to anyone working on behalf of Alfalah Project, including senior managers and the board of trustees, paid staff, volunteers, sessional workers, agency staff and students.

Legal framework This policy has been drawn up on the basis of legislation, policy and guidance that seeks to protect children in England/Northern Ireland/Scotland/Wales [select the relevant nation]. A summary of the key legislation is available from nspcc.org.uk/learning. Supporting documents This policy statement should be read alongside our organisational policies, procedures, guidance and other related documents.

- Role description for the designated safeguarding officer
- Dealing with disclosures and concerns about a child or young person
- Managing allegations against staff and volunteers
- Recording concerns and information sharing
- Child protection records retention and storage
- Code of conduct for staff and volunteers
- Behaviour codes for children and young people
- Photography and sharing images guidance
- Safer recruitment
- Online safety
- Anti-bullying
- Managing complaints
- Whistleblowing
- Health and safety
- Induction, training, supervision and support
- Adult to child supervision ratios

#### We believe that:

• Children and young people should never experience abuse of any kind

• We have a responsibility to promote the welfare of all children and young people, to keep them safe and to practise in a way that protects them.

#### We recognise that:

• the welfare of children is paramount in all the work we do and in all the decisions we take all children, regardless of age, disability, gender reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, or sexual orientation have an equal right to protection from all types of harm or abuse • some children are additionally vulnerable because of the impact of previous experiences, their level of dependency, communication needs or other issues

• working in partnership with children, young people, their parents, carers and other agencies is essential in promoting young people's welfare.

#### We will seek to keep children and young people safe by:

- valuing, listening to and respecting them
- appointing a nominated child protection lead for children and young people, a deputy and a lead trustee/board member for safeguarding
- adopting child protection and safeguarding best practice through our policies, procedures and code of conduct for staff and volunteers
- developing and implementing an effective online safety policy and related procedures
- providing effective management for staff and volunteers through supervision, support, training and quality assurance measures so that all staff and volunteers know about and follow our policies, procedures and behaviour codes confidently and competently
- recruiting and selecting staff and volunteers safely, ensuring all necessary checks are made
- recording, storing and using information professionally and securely, in line with data protection legislation and guidance [more information about this is available from the Information Commissioner's Office: ico.org.uk/fororganisations]
- sharing information about safeguarding and good practice with children and their families via leaflets, posters, group work and one-to-one discussions
- making sure that children, young people and their families know where to go for help if they have a concern
- using our safeguarding and child protection procedures to share concerns and relevant information with agencies who need to know, and involving children, young people, parents, families and carers appropriately
- using our procedures to manage any allegations against staff and volunteers appropriately
- creating and maintaining an anti-bullying environment and ensuring that we have a policy and procedure to help us deal effectively with any bullying that does arise
- ensuring that we have effective complaints and whistleblowing measures in place
- ensuring that we provide a safe physical environment for our children, young people, staff and volunteers, by applying health and safety measures in accordance with the law and regulatory guidance
- building a safeguarding culture where staff and volunteers, children, young people and their families, treat each other with respect and are comfortable about sharing concerns.

#### **Contact details**

Nominated child protection lead Name: Nora Chegnoun Phone/email: norabouchachia9@gmail.com

Deputy child protection lead(s) Name: Khawla Cherrak Phone/email: kc-1995@hotmail.co.uk

Trustee/Senior lead for safeguarding and child protection Name: Zineb Hamadouche Phone/email: Zineb.h007@gmail.com

This policy was last reviewed on: Date: 01/09/21 Signed:

titte

## Introduction

We recognise our moral and statutory responsibility to safeguard and promote the welfare of all children. We endeavour to provide a safe and welcoming environment where children are respected and valued. We are alert to the signs of abuse and neglect and follow our procedures to ensure that children receive effective support, protection and justice.

This policy works alongside these other specific policies to cover all aspects of child protection:

- Part 1 of "Keeping Children Safe in Education (September 2021)
- Anti-bullying
- Behaviour Policy (Includes Staff Code of Conduct)
- Peer on Peer Abuse Policy

#### Covid – 19

The Department of Education issued non-statutory interim guidance on safeguarding in schools, colleges and other providers during the coronavirus outbreak. This guidance has now been withdrawn as the government expects all settings across the nation to reopen for the new academic year in September, with full availability to all learners. Requirements for local interventions in educational settings will continue to be reviewed.

## Legal framework

This policy has been created with due regard to all relevant leglislation including, but not limited to, the following:

- Education Act 2002
- Children Act 1989 and 2004
- The Education (Independent School Standards) Regulation 2014 (for independent schools)
- "Guidance for safer working practices for those working with children and young people in educational settings, Safer Recruitment Consortium , 2015"
- The Prevent Duty Advice, June 2015
- The Statutory Framework for the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) 2021
- Working together to safeguard children 2018
- Keeping children safe in education (July 2021)

# **Definition of Safeguarding**

The term' **child**' and '**children**' refer to anyone under the age of 18. For the purpose of this policy, 'safeguarding and protecting the welfare of children' is defined as:

- Protecting children from maltreatment.
- Preventing the impairment of children's health or development.
- Ensuring that children grow up in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe and effective care.
- Taking action to enable all pupils to have the best outcomes.

## Principles

Our core safeguarding principles are:

- It is the setting's responsibility to take all reasonable steps to safeguard and protect the rights, health and well-being of all children who are in our care.
- Policies will be reviewed annually, unless an incident or new legislation or guidance suggests the need for an earlier review date.
- The setting will ensure that the welfare of children is given paramount consideration when developing and delivering all activities.
- All children, regardless of age, gender, ability, culture, race, and language have equal rights to protection.
- All staff have an equal responsibility to act on any suspicion or disclosure that may suggest a child is at risk of harm in accordance with this guidance.
- All children and staff involved in child protection issues will receive appropriate support from the Head Teacher of the setting (if applicable) who will follow this policy guidance in doing so.

## Aims

- To provide all staff with the necessary information to enable us to meet our statutory responsibilities to promote and safeguard the wellbeing of children.
- To ensure consistent good practice across the setting.
- To demonstrate the setting's commitment to safeguarding children.

## Roles and responsibilities

Nominated child protection lead Name: Nora Chegnoun Phone/email: norabouchachia9@gmail.com

Deputy child protection lead(s) Name: Khawla Cherrak Phone/email: kc-1995@hotmail.co.uk

Trustee/Senior lead for safeguarding and child protection Name: Zineb Hamadouche Phone/email: Zineb.h007@gmail.com

The setting will ensure that the Designated Members of Staff

- are appropriately trained
- act as sources of support and expertise to the setting
- keep written records of all concerns when noted and reported by staff or when disclosed by a child, ensuring that such records are stored securely and reported onward in accordance with this policy guidance, but kept separately from the child's general file
- refers cases of suspected neglect and/or abuse to children's social care or police in accordance with this guidance and local procedure
- develop effective links with relevant statutory and voluntary agencies.
- ensures that all staff sign to indicate that they have read and understood this policy
- ensures that the safeguarding policy is updated annually
- keep a record of staff attendance at child protection training and makes this policy available to parents.

## Good practice guidelines

To meet and maintain our responsibilities towards children, the setting agrees to the following standards of good practice:

- to treat all children with respect
- to set a good example of conducting ourselves appropriately
- to ensure the staff are positive role models to children and other members of the team and never engage in rough, physical or sexually provocative games

- to involve children in decision-making which affects them (taking age and development of children into account)
- to encourage positive and safe behaviour among children
- to be a good listener
- to be alert to changes in a child's behaviour
- to recognise that challenging behaviour may be an indicator of abuse
- to read and understand all of the setting's safeguarding and guidance documents on wider safeguarding issues, for example physical contact and information-sharing
- to ask the child's permission before doing anything for him/her (taking age and development of the child into account) which is of a physical nature, such as assisting with dressing or administering first aid
- to maintain appropriate standards of conversation and interaction with and between children and avoid the use of sexualized and derogatory language
- to be aware that the personal and family circumstances and lifestyle of some children lead to an increased risk of neglect and/ or abuse
- to raise awareness of child protection issues and equip children with the skills to keep themselves safe
- to provide any form of manual or physical support required, as a last resort and to do so openly and appropriately, and to always consult the children and gain their agreement (taking age and development of children into account)
- to establish a safe environment in which children can learn and develop, particularly in their confidence and self-esteem and to provide opportunities for achievement.

# Monitoring Children's Attendance

As part of our requirements under the statutory framework and guidance documents, we are required to monitor children's attendance patterns to ensure they are consistent and no cause for concern.

Parents/Carers should inform the setting prior to their children taking holidays or days off. If a child is absent due to sickness, parents/carers should phone or email the setting in the morning so the headteacher is able to account for a child's absence.

If a child has not arrived in the setting, within one hour of their normal start time the parents will be called to ensure the child is safe. If the parents/carers are not contactable then the further emergency contacts will be used to ensure all parties are safe. When a child is part of a child protection plan or during a referral process, any absences will be reported immediately to the local authority children's social care team to ensure the child remains safeguarded.

This should not stop parents taking precious time with their children or to withdraw them from our school but enables children's attendance to be logged so we know the child is safe.

# Intimate/Personal Care

Children's dignity will be preserved and a level of privacy ensured. The normal process of nappy changing should not raise child protection concerns. There are no regulations that indicate that a second member of staff must be available to supervise the nappy changing process to ensure that abuse does not occur, but we must ensure that staff do not leave themselves vulnerable and will always work in an open environment by avoiding private or unobserved situations or closing doors to toilet areas.

# Safer Caring

All members of staff are aware of the setting's safeguarding procedures and are committed to working in accordance to the principles of safe caring.

- Although we have limited time with the children since we are a supplementary school, we ensure that our setting has an open environment where the children feel safe to share information about anything that is upsetting them.
- Staff do not have to deal with Child Protection issues by themselves. If procedures are followed then support is available to manage these difficult and potentially upsetting situations.
- It may be necessary or appropriate, particularly with younger children to hold hands or give cuddles but such contact should be kept to a minimum and should only be initiated by the child. Staff should only have physical contact with children when there are other people present.
- All members of staff are mindful of how they approach children both physically and verbally. All contact should be appropriate to the child's age and emotional understanding.
- As a school, we recognise that there is sometimes the need to work in a one-to-one situation with a child. Staff should leave the door open and make sure another adult knows where they are and what they are doing.

# E-Safety, Staff and Parents/Carers

It's important that children and young people feel happy with their achievements and have photographs and films of their special moments. Family and friends also want to be able to share the successes of their children when they have been part of a special event or activity.

However, some children, parents or carers may not be comfortable with images of themselves or their children being shared. For example:

- if a child and/or their family have experienced abuse they may worry about the perpetrator tracing them online
- children who choose not to have contact with some members of their family may decide to minimise their online presence
- families may have religious or cultural reasons for choosing not to be photographed.

It's important to be aware of child protection and safeguarding issues when taking photos of or filming children and young people.

## Mobile Technologies

We recognise that the area of mobile technology is rapidly advancing and it is our school's policy to review its stance on such technology on a regular basis. Currently our policy is:

- Staff are not permitted to use their personal mobile phones in school while they are teaching and any use should be restricted to times when the children are not present. Staff are required to keep their phones switched off and in their bags while on duty. Mobile phones may be used in the staffroom or offices where children are not present. The only exception to this is in the case of an emergency during a school outing.
- Staff do not use their mobile phones to take images of children, for example on a school outing. The school has devices available for this Personal mobile phones should not be visible while staff are teaching and moving around the indoor and outdoor areas.
- Parents, carers, visitors, support staff and volunteers are requested to turn their mobile phones off and put them away before they enter the school grounds.

# Use of Digital Images and Video

The vast majority of people who take or view photographs or videos of children do so for entirely innocent, understandable and acceptable reasons. Sadly, some people abuse children through taking or using images so we must ensure that we have safeguards in place. To protect children we will:

- Comply with the Data Protection Act 2018, written consent is obtained from the parents/carers to take and use images of children
- obtain parents' and carers' consent for photographs to be taken or published (for example, on our website or in newspapers or publications)
- use only the child's first name with an image
- ensure that children are appropriately dressed
- ensure the setting's designated cameras and/or iPads are only used in the setting
- images taken on the setting's cameras and/or iPads will not be emailed as they may not be secure
- parents, carers, volunteers and support staff are not permitted to take photographs of the children in the setting. The occasions during the year when parents/carers are permitted to take photographs are end of term school/class concerts and Sports Day
- ensure all school cameras and iPads used are open to scrutiny.

#### responding to concerns about a child's wellbeing

## Recording Suspicions of Abuse and Disclosures

Staff should make an objective record of any observation or disclosure (using the appropriate form), supported by the DSL. This record should include:

- Child's name
- Child's address
- Age of child and date of birth
- Date and time of the observation or the disclosure
- Exact words spoken by the child
- Using body map exact position and type of any injuries or marks seen (physical injury)
- Exact observation of any incident including any concern that was reported, with date and time
- Any discussion held with parent(s) where deemed appropriate.

These records should be signed by the person reporting this and the DSL, dated and kept in a confidential file.

If a child starts to talk to an adult about potential abuse it is important not to promise the child complete confidentiality. This promise cannot be kept. It is vital that the child is allowed to talk openly and disclosure is not forced or words put into the child's mouth. As soon as possible after the disclosure, details must be logged accurately.

# Guidelines for Designated Safeguarding Leads

- If an incident is reported to the DSL, they should decide how to proceed.
- Wherever possible talk to parents, unless to do so may place a child at risk of significant harm, impede any police investigation and/or place a member of staff or others at risk.
- Whether to make a child protection referral to local authority because a child is suffering or is likely to suffer significant harm and whether this needs to be undertaken immediately.

OR:

• Not to make a referral at this stage but to continue to monitor and log the situation.

All information and actions taken, including the reasons for any decisions made, should be fully documented. All referrals should be accompanied by a referral form.

Social care is always available to offer advice to designated safeguarding staff if action needed is unclear.

If at any point, there is a risk of immediate serious harm to a child a referral should be made immediately. All referrals are made to the local authority where the premises is hired. Anybody can make a referral.

If the child's situation does not appear to be improving, the person with concerns should press for re-consideration. Concerns should always lead to help for the child at some point.

## **Informing Parents**

Parents are normally the first point of contact. If a suspicion of abuse is recorded, parents are informed at the same time as the report is made, except where the guidance of the local authority children's social care team/police does not allow it. This will usually be the case where the parent of family member is the likely abuser or where the child may be endangered by this disclosure. In this case, the investigating officers will inform parents.

# Early Help

Early help means providing support as soon as a problem emerges, at any point in a child's life. Any child may benefit from early help but in particular, staff will be alert to the potential need for early help for a child who:

- Is disabled and has specific additional needs
- Has special educational needs (whether or not they have a statutory Education, Health and Care Plan)
- Is a young carer
- Is showing signs of being drawn in to anti-social or criminal behaviour, including gang involvement and association with organised crime groups
- Is frequently missing/goes missing from care or from home
- Is at risk of modern slavery, trafficking or exploitation
- Is at risk of being radicalised or exploited
- Is in a family circumstance presenting challenges for a child, such as drug and alcohol misuse, adult mental health issues and domestic abuse
- Is misusing drugs and/or alcohol themselves
- Has returned home to their family from care
- Is a privately fostered child

## Pupils with SEND

The setting recognises that pupils with SEND can face additional safeguarding challenges and understands that further barriers may exist when determining abuse and neglect in this group of children.

Staff will be aware of the following:

- Certain indicators of abuse, such as behaviour, mood and injury, may relate to the child's disability without further exploration; however it should never be assumed that a child's indicators relate only to their disability
- Pupils with SEND can be disproportionally impacted by things like bullying, without outwardly showing any signs
- Communication barriers may exist, as well as difficulties in overcoming these barriers

When reporting concerns or making referrals for children with SEND, the above factors will always be taken into consideration.

When managing a safeguarding issue relating to a child with SEND, the DSL will liaise with the school's SENCO (at present the DSL is also the SENCO) as

well as the child's family where appropriate, to ensure that the child's needs is effectively met.

## Allegations against adults working or volunteering with children

If an allegation is made against a member of staff, student or volunteer we will follow the procedures below:

- The allegation should be reported immediately to the head teacher. Should the allegation be made against the head teacher, the matter should be reported immediately to a member of the Senior Management Team
- The Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) will be informed immediately for advice and guidance
- The Local Authority Designated Officer
- If as an individual you feel this will not be taken seriously or are worried about the allegation getting back to the person in question then it is your duty to inform the LADO directly
- A full investigation will be carried out by the appropriate professionals to determine how this will be handled
- The setting will follow all instructions from the LADO and ask all members of staff to do the same and co-operate when required.

## **Safeguarding Partners**

From September 2019 Safeguarding partners replace all LSBC's (Local Safeguarding Children's Boards) in England. The three partners are the local authority, clinical commissioning group and the chief officer of police who have a shared and equal duty to make arrangements to work together to safeguard and promote the welfare of all children in a local area.

# Confidentiality

All staff understands that child protection issues warrant a high level of confidentiality, not only out of respect for the child and staff involved but also to ensure that being released into the public domain does not compromise evidence. Staff should only discuss concerns with the designated persons or headteacher. That person will then decide who else needs to have the information and they will disseminate it on a "need-to-know" basis.

# **Information Sharing**

Information sharing is essential for effective safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and young people. Golders Hill School is guided by the Seven Golden Rules to Sharing Information as outlined in the DfE publication, Information Sharing Advice for Practitioners Providing Safeguarding Information 2018. This information states that information shared should be "necessary, proportionate, relevant, accurate, adequate, timely and secure." Golders Hill School recognises that the Data Protection Act 2018 and GDPR (General Data Protection Regulation) are not a barrier for sharing information for safeguarding purposes.

# Staff Training

- All staff receive approved external training every three years.
- The DSL and deputy DSL undergo updated child protection training every two years, as well as additional training to refresh their skills and knowledge at regular intervals (at least annually) to allow them to keep up-to-date with any developments relevant to their role.
- The Designated Professionals deliver training at least annually to all staff who work in the setting.
- All staff members receive safeguarding and child protection updates as required. These updates usually take place at staff meetings.
- All new staff and temporary staff are required to attend an induction session with the Designated Safeguarding Lead within their first week at the setting.
- Volunteers/students are familiarised with this Child Protection Policy.

## Record keeping

Well-kept records are essential to good Safeguarding Practice. Our setting is clear about the need to record any concerns held about a child or children within our setting, the status of such records and when those records should be passed over to other agencies.

Any records regarding safeguarding and child protection are kept securely in the Designated Safeguarding Lead's office.

#### recruiting the right people to work and volunteer with children

Everyone who comes into contact with children and young people should take child protection training to make sure they know how to recognise and respond to child protection concerns. Training should be a part of the induction process and staff and volunteers should do refresher training regularly.

## Safer Recruitment

An enhanced DBS check with barred list of information will be undertaken for all staff members engaged in regulated activity. A person will be considered to be in **'regulated activity'** if, as a result of their work, they:

- Are responsible on a daily basis for the care or supervision of children.
- Regularly work in the setting at times when children are on the premises.
- Regularly come into contact with children under 18 years of age.

The DfE's DBS Workforce Guides will be consulted when determining whether a position fits the child workforce criteria.

## Pre – employment checks

The headteacher will assess the suitability of prospective employees by:

- Verifying the candidate's identity, preferably from the most current photographic ID and proof of address.
- Obtaining a certificate for an enhanced DBS check with barred list information where the person will be engaged in regulated activity.
- Obtaining a separate barred list check if an individual will start work in regulated activity before the DBS certificate is available.
- Checking that a candidate to be employed as teacher/teaching assistant is not subject to a prohibition order issued by the Secretary of State, using the **TRA Teacher Services' System**.
- Verifying the candidate's mental and physical fitness to undertake their working responsibilities, including asking relevant questions about disability and health to establish whether they have the physical and mental capacity for the specific role.
- Checking the person's right to work in the UK. If there is uncertainty about whether an individual needs permission to work in the UK, the advice set out on the **Gov. UK** website will be followed.

- If the person has lived or worked outside the UK, making any further checks that the setting considers appropriate; this includes checking for and teacher/teaching assistant sanctions or restrictions that an EEA (European Economic Area) professional, regulating authority has imposed.
- From 1<sup>st</sup> January 2021 the **TRA Teacher Services' System** will no longer maintain a list of those teachers who have been sanctioned in the EEA member states As a result nurseries, schools and colleges must make any further checks they think appropriate so that any relevant events that occurs outside the UK can be considered. Further information can be found in the DfE guidance; Recruit teachers from overseas.

## Volunteers

Any parent or other person/organisation engaged by the school to work in a voluntary capacity with pupils will be subjected to all reasonable vetting procedures and Criminal Records Checks. There is no legal requirement to obtain DBS certificates for volunteers who are not in regulated activity but an enhanced DBS check without a barred list check may be requested following a risk assessment. Volunteers will be subject to the same code of conduct as paid employees of the school.

# **Recognising Child Abuse**

Child abuse manifests itself in a variety of ways, some overt and some less obvious. Abuse is a form of maltreatment of a child. Somebody may abuse or neglect a child by inflicting harm or by failing to act to prevent harm. Children may be abused in a family or in an institutional or community setting by those known to them or more rarely by others. Abuse can take place wholly online or technology may be used to facilitate offline abuse. They may be abused by an adult or adults or by another child or children.

Abuse is defined under four categories: physical abuse, emotional abuse, sexual abuse and neglect. These categories overlap and an abused child does frequently suffer more than one type of abuse.

Physical Abuse	A form of abuse which may involve hitting, shaking,
	throwing, poisoning, burning or scalding, drowning or suffocating or otherwise causing physical harm to a
	child. Physical harm may also be caused when a parent
	or carer fabricates the symptoms of or deliberately
	induces, illness in a child
Sexual Abuse	Involves forcing or enticing a child or young person to
	take part in sexual activities, not necessarily involving a

	high level of violence, whether or not the child is aware what is happening. The activities may involve physical contact including assault by penetration (for example rape or oral sex) or non penetrative acts such as masturbation, kissing, rubbing and touching outside of clothing. They may also include non-contact activities, such as involving children looking at or in the production of, sexual images, watching sexual activities, encouraging children to behave in sexually inappropriate ways or grooming a child in preparation for abuse. Sexual abuse can take place online and technology can be used to facilitate offline abuse. Sexual abuse is not solely perpetrated by adult males. Women can also commit acts of sexual abuse, as can other children. The sexual abuse of children by other children is a specific safeguarding issue in education.	
Emotional Abuse	The persistent emotional maltreatment of a child such	
	as to cause severe and adverse effects on the child's	
	development. It may involve conveying to a child that	
	they are worthless or unloved, inadequate or valued	
	only insofar as they meet the needs of another person.	
	It may include not giving the child opportunities to	
	express their views, deliberately silencing them or	
	"making fun" of what they say or how they	
	communicate. It may feature age or developmentally	
	inappropriate expectations being imposed on children.	
	These may include interactions that are beyond a	
	child's developmental capability as well as	
	overprotection and limitation of exploration and	
	learning or preventing the child from participating in	
	normal social interaction. It may involve seeing or	
	hearing the ill-treatment of another. It may involve	
	serious bullying (including cyberbullying) causing	
	children frequently to feel frightened or in danger, or	
	the exploitation or corruption of children. Some level	
	of emotional abuse is involved in all types of maltreatment of a child, although it may occur along	
Noglact	maltreatment of a child, although it may occur alone.	
Neglect	The persistent failure to meet a child's basic physical	
	and/or psychological needs, likely to result in the	

serious impairment of the	child's health or
development. Neglect may	occur during pregnancy for
example, as a result of mat	ternal substance abuse.
Once a child is born, negled	ct may involve a parent or
carer failing to provide ade	equate food, clothing or
shelter (including exclusion	n from home or
abandonment): protect a c	hild from physical and
emotional harm or danger;	; ensure adequate
supervision (including the u	use of inadequate care-
givers); or ensure access to	appropriate medical care or
treatment. It may also inclu	ude neglect of, or
unresponsiveness to, a chil	ld's basic emotional needs.

# Child Criminal Exploitation (CCE)

CCE is where an individual or group takes advantage of an imbalance of power to coerce, control, manipulate or deceive a child into any criminal activity (a) in exchange for something the victim needs or wants, and/or (b) for the financial or other advantage of the perpetrator or facilitator and/or (c) through violence or the threat of violence. The victim may have been criminally exploited even if the activity appears consensual. CCE does not always involve physical contact; it can also occur through the use of technology.

CCE can include children being forced to work in cannabis factories, being coerced into moving drugs or money across the country (county lines), forced to shoplift or pickpocket, or to threaten other young people.

# Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE)

CSE occurs where an individual or group takes advantage of an imbalance of power to coerce, manipulate or deceive a child into sexual activity (a) in exchange for something the victim needs or wants, and/or (b) for the financial advantage or increased status of the perpetrator or facilitator. The victim may have been sexually exploited even if the sexual activity appears consensual. CSE does not always involve physical contact; it can also occur through the use of technology. CSE can affect any child or young person (male or female) under the age of 18 years, including 16 and 17 year olds who can legally consent to have sex. It can include both contact (penetrative and non-penetrative acts) and non-contact sexual activity and may occur without the young person's immediate knowledge (e.g., through others copying videos or images they have created and posted on social media).

The Department of Education provide:

#### Children missing from education

All staff should be aware that children going missing, particularly repeatedly, can act as a vital warning sign of a range of safeguarding possibilities. This may include abuse and neglect, which may include sexual abuse or exploitation and can also be a sign of child criminal exploitation including involving in county lines. It may indicate mental health problems, risk of substance abuse, risk of travelling to conflict zones, risk of female genital mutilation or risk of forced marriage. Early intervention is necessary to identify the existence of any underlying safeguarding risk and to help prevent the risks of a child going missing in the future. Staff should be aware of the setting's unauthorised absence and children missing from education procedures.

## Female Genital Mutilation (FGM)

Female genital mutilation (sometimes referred to as female circumcision) refers to procedures that intentionally alter or cause injury to the female genital organs for non-medical reasons. It has no health benefits and harms girls and women in many ways. It involves removing and damaging healthy and normal female genital tissue and hence interferes with the natural function of girls' and women's bodies. FGM causes severe pain and has several immediate and long-term health consequences, including difficulty in childbirth also causing dangers to the child. It is practised by families for a variety of complex reasons but often in the belief that it is beneficial for the girl or women. FGM is practised in 28 African countries as well as in parts of the Middle East and Asia. The practice is illegal in the UK. It has been estimated that over 20,000 girls under the age of 15 are at risk of FGM in the UK each year and that 66,000 women in the UK are living with the consequences of FGM. The girls may be taken to their countries of origin so that FGM can be carried out during the summer holidays, allowing them time to "heal" before they return to school. Some girls may have FGM performed in the UK. FGM is child abuse and a form of violence against women and girls.

Section 5B of the Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003 (as inserted by section 74 of the Serious Crime Act 2015) places a statutory duty upon teachers along with regulated health and social care professionals in England and Wales, to report to the police where they discover (either through disclosure by the

victim or visual evidence) that FGM appears to have been carried out on a girl under 18. Information on when and how to make a report can be found at: <u>Mandatory reporting of female genital mutilation procedural information.</u>

# Fabricated or Induced Illness (FII)

FII in children is a difficult and complex subject but schools and nurseries can play a key role in recognising concerns that may relate to this rare form of child abuse. Fabricated/Induced Illness occurs when a child is presented for medical attention with signs or symptoms which have been fabricated or induced by the child's carer. FII is a spectrum of disorders rather than a single entity. At one end less extreme behaviours include a genuine belief that the child is ill. At the other end the behaviour of parents/carers includes them deliberately inducing symptoms by administrating drugs, intentional suffocation, overdosing, tampering with medical equipment, falsifying test results and observational charts. Most of these symptoms will not be visible within the nursery/school setting but it is sensible to be aware of signs in case a child or another family member raises these issues.

The signs of FII can be ambiguous and may be attributed to other problems in the child's family that you may be aware of. School staff are particularly wellplaced to notice outward signs of harm or to observe if a child is repeatedly unwell for no apparent reason. Or a discrepancy may occur when parents give a description of a child's ill health, which does not accord with your observation, and knowledge of the child in the nursery/school setting.

## **Domestic Abuse**

The cross-government definition of domestic violence and abuse is: Any incident or pattern of incidents of controlling, coercive, threatening behaviour, violence or abuse between those aged 16 or over, who are or have been intimate partners or family members regardless of gender or sexuality. The abuse can encompass but is not limited to:

- physical
- sexual
- financial
- emotional
- psychological

All children can witness and be adversely affected by domestic abuse in the context of their home life where domestic abuse occurs between family members.

Exposure to domestic abuse and/or violence can have serious, long lasting emotional and psychological impact on children. In some cases, a child may blame themselves for the abuse or may have had to leave the family home as a result. Domestic abuse affecting young people can also occur within their personal relationships, as well as in the context of their home life. Advice on identifying children who are affected by domestic abuse and how they can be helped is available at:

NSPCC-UKdomestic-abuseSignsSymptomsEffects

Refuge what is domestic violence/effects of domestic violence on children Safelives: young people and domestic abuse

## **Preventing Radicalisation**

"Radicalisation" refers to the process by which a person comes to support terrorism and extremist ideologies.

The Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015 places a duty on specified authorities, including local authorities and childcare, education and other children's services providers, in the exercise of their functions, to have due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism ("The Prevent Duty"). Young people can be exposed to extremist influences or prejudiced views, in particular those via the internet and other social media. Schools can help to protect children from extremist and violent views in the same ways that they help to safeguard children from drugs, gang violence or alcohol.

## Upskirting

The Voyeurism (Offences) Act, which is commonly known as the Upskirting Act, came into force on the 12<sup>th</sup> April 2019. 'Upskirting is where someone takes a picture under a person's clothing (not necessarily a skirt) without their permission and/or knowledge, with the intention of viewing their genitals or buttocks (with or without underwear) to obtain sexual gratification or cause the victim humiliation, distress or alarm. It is a criminal offence. Anyone of any gender can be a victim.

## Children with family members in prison

Approximately 200,000 children in England and Wales have a parent sent to prison each year. These children are at risk of poor outcomes including poverty, stigma, isolation and poor mental health. NICCO provides information designed to support professionals working with offenders and their children, to help mitigate negative consequences for those children.

## **Mental Health**

All staff are aware that mental health problems can, in some cases, be an indicator that a child has suffered or is at risk of suffering abuse, neglect or exploitation.

Only appropriately, trained professionals should attempt to make a diagnosis of a mental health problem. Staff however, are well placed to observe children day-to-day and identify those whose behaviour suggests that they may be experiencing a mental health problem or be at risk of developing one. Where children have suffered abuse and neglect or other traumatic adverse childhood experiences, this can have a lasting impact throughout childhood, adolescence and into adulthood. It is key that staff are aware of how these children's experiences, can impact on their mental health, behaviour and education.

If staff have a mental health concern about a child that is also a safeguarding concern, immediate action should be taken, following the child protection policy and speaking to the designated safeguarding lead or deputy. The Department of Education has published advice and guidance on Preventing and Tackling Bullying and Mental Health and Behaviour in Schools

responding to allegations of abuse made against a child

- ensure children who may have been abused by another child or young person are protected and supported
- provide the child or young person who may have carried out the abuse with the appropriate help
- the setting's response to any allegations is fair and consistent and any risks posed to children are managed appropriately.

#### Peer on peer abuse

Children can abuse other children. This is generally referred to as peer on peer abuse and can take many forms. This can include (but is not limited to0 bullying (including cyberbullying): sexual violence and sexual harassment: physical abuse such as hitting, kicking, shaking, biting, hair pulling, or otherwise causing physical harm; sexting and initiation/hazing type violence and rituals. (Please refer to Peer on Peer Abuse Policy)

# **Contextual Safeguarding**

Safeguarding incidents can occur outside of school and can be associated with outside factors. School staff, particularly the DSL and the DDSL, will always consider the context of incidents – this is known as contextual safeguarding. Assessment of pupils' behaviour will consider whether there are wider environmental factors that are a threat to their safety and/or welfare. The setting will provide as much contextual information as possible when making referrals to Children's Services.

## Monitoring and Review

This policy is reviewed annually by the **Designated Safeguarding Lead** and **Deputy Safeguarding Lead**. Any changes made to this policy by the **DSL** and the **DDSL** will be communicated to all members of staff. All members of staff are required to familiarise themselves with all processes

and procedures outlined in this policy.

#### preventing and responding to bullying

Bullying is when individuals or groups seek to harm, intimidate or coerce someone who is perceived to be vulnerable (Oxford English Dictionary, 2021).

It can involve people of any age, and can happen anywhere – at home, school or using online platforms and technologies (cyberbullying). This means it can happen at any time.

Bullying encompasses a range of behaviours which may be combined and may include the behaviours and actions we have set out below.

#### Verbal abuse:

- name-calling
- saying nasty things to or about a child or their family.

#### **Physical abuse:**

- hitting a child
- pushing a child
- physical assault.

#### **Emotional abuse:**

- making threats
- undermining a child
- excluding a child from a friendship group or activities.

#### **Cyberbullying/online bullying:**

- excluding a child from online games, activities or friendship groups
- sending threatening, upsetting or abusive messages
- creating and sharing embarrassing or malicious images or videos
- 'trolling' sending menacing or upsetting messages on social networks, chat rooms or online games
- voting for or against someone in an abusive poll
- setting up hate sites or groups about a particular child
- creating fake accounts, hijacking or stealing online identities to embarrass a young person or cause trouble using their name.

Bullying can be a form of discrimination, particularly if it is based on a child's disability, race, religion or belief, gender identity or sexuality.

#### responding to concerns about online abuse

Online abuse is any type of abuse that happens on the internet, facilitated through technology like computers, tablets, mobile phones and other internetenabled devices (Department for Education, 2018; Department of Health, 2017; Scottish Government, 2021; Welsh Assembly Government, 2018).

It can happen anywhere online that allows digital communication, such as:

- social networks
- text messages and messaging apps
- email and private messaging
- online chats
- comments on live streaming sites

• voice chat in games.

Children and young people can be revictimised (experience further abuse) when abusive content is recorded, uploaded or shared by others online. This can happen if the original abuse happened online or offline.

Children and young people may experience several types of abuse online:

- <u>bullying/cyberbullying</u>
- <u>emotional abuse</u> (this includes emotional blackmail, for example pressuring children and young people to comply with sexual requests via technology)
- <u>sexting</u> (pressure or coercion to create sexual images)
- <u>sexual abuse</u>
- <u>sexual exploitation</u>.

Children and young people can also be groomed online: perpetrators may use online platforms to build a trusting relationship with the child in order to abuse them. This abuse may happen online or the perpetrator may arrange to meet the child in person with the intention of abusing them.

#### whistleblowing

Whistleblowing is when someone reports wrongdoing on the basis that it is in the public interest for the wrongdoing to be brought to light. Once a child is believed to be unsafe, or a case hasn't been dealt with properly, it must be reposted to the DDSL

The next scheduled review date for this policy is **September 2022**.